
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


AGENDA 
April 4, 2013, Regular Meeting 


District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 
Guerneville, California 


6:30 p.m. 
 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 


(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 7, 2013 Regular Board Meeting and the 


March 21, 2013 Special Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 







 2


attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
 A. Discussion/Action re Resolution13-08, Authorizing the Engagement of 


Professional Services in Connection with the Refunding of Outstanding Bonds 
Directly Purchased by the United States Department of Agriculture. (Est. Time 15 
min) 


 
 B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-09, Approving the First Amendment to CIP 


2013 Contract with Coastland Engineering. (Est. Time 10 min) 
 


C. Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-07, Authorizing the General Manager to 
Accept Capital Improvement Project 2013 and to Sign and Record a Notice of 
Completion (Est. time 5 min.) 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2013-2014 Operating and Capital Improvement 


Budget (Est. time 15 min.) 
 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
 
VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS (Est. time 


5 min.) 
 
VIII. CLOSED SESSION 


 
 


IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 


ADJOURN 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX.  ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA (Est. time: 5 min.)



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
March 7, 2013 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Richard Holmer 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donahue, Meyers Nave et al. 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Richard Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 
II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 


p.m.) 
 
President Holmer requested that the following items be pulled from the Agenda: 
 Item V-A – Capacity and flat charge waiver request for “The Triangle” property in Monte Rio 
 Item V-D – Proposed cell tower at Highland Treatment Facility 
 Item V-E – Res. 13-07, Notice of Completion for CIP 2013 
There were no objections. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.) 
 
Director Wikle moved to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted.  Director Robb-Wilder 
seconded.  Motion carried 5-0, except that Director Schaap abstained as to Item V-A --approval of 
the Minutes -- because he was absent.  The following items were approved: 
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the February 7, 2013 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence, if any (None) 
 


 1







D. Approval of Resolution 13-6, Approving Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for 
Legal Services with Meyers Nave. 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.) 
 
(None.) 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.) 
 
A. Discussion/Action re Agreement with Monte Rio Rec and Park District, Monte Rio 


Chamber of Commerce and Torr family to waive capacity and flat charges for “The 
Triangle” property in Monte Rio.  This item was removed from the Agenda in Item II 
above.  


 
B. (6:34 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2013-14 Operating and Capital 


Improvement Budget.  The GM made a PowerPoint presentation.  Board questions and 
discussion ensued.  No action was taken.   


 
C. (7:15 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Proposal to refund District Bonds.  The GM 


provided an overview of this item.  Discussion ensued.  Comments were made by legal 
counsel, Robin Donahue.  Further discussion ensued.  The Board agreed to have the 
Budget Committee consider this item in more detail and report at a Special Meeting.  A 
Budget Committee Meeting was scheduled for March 14, 2013 at 3:30 p.m.  A Special 
Meeting was scheduled for March 21, 2013 at 6:30 p.m. 


 
D. Discussion/Action re Proposed Cell Tower at Highland Treatment Facility 
 Location: 14156 Sunset Avenue, Guerneville  This item was removed from the Agenda 


in Item II above. 


E. Discussion/Action re Resolution 13-07, Authorizing the General Manager to Accept 
Capital Improvement Project 2013 and to Sign and Record a Notice of Completion.  
This item was removed from the Agenda in Item II above. 


 
 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:20 p.m.) 
 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Laboratory testing 
2. Water Production and Sales 
3. Leaks 
4. Guerneville rainfall 
5. 2013 CIP 
6. Toilet Rebate / Direct Install Program 
7. In-House Construction Projects 
8. Gantt Chart 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS  
(8:31 p.m.) 


 
Director Holmer commented on the Sonoma County Citizens’ Report. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:32 p.m.) 
 


 2







 3


At 8:32 p.m. President Holmer announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  The 
Board went into Closed Session at 8:32 p.m.  At 8:39 p.m., the meeting reconvened and the 
following actions on Closed Session items were announced:  
 
 A. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Gov. Code Section 


54957 
  Title: General Manager  
  Direction was given to staff. 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:40 p.m.) 
 
1. Bond refinancing 
2. Budget 
3. Monte Rio Triangle 
4. Notice of Completion 
6. Proposed AT&T Cell Tower 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:43 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:32 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:34 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:34 p.m.)

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:20 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 

		(8:31 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:32 p.m.)



		IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:40 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
(*In order discussed) 


 
 


Board of Directors SPECIAL Meeting  
March 21, 2013 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Sukey Robb-Wilder (arr. 6:32 p.m.) 
 Victoria Wikle 
 Richard Holmer 
 Tim Lipinski 
 Gaylord Schaap 
   
Board Members Absent: (None) 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie A. Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
   
Others in Attendance:     David Warner, Meyers Nave et al. 
      Nicky Tallman, Brandis Tallman 
      Rick Brandis, Brandis Tallman 
      Henry Har, Meyers Nave et al. (via telephone) 
      Steve Tabor, Meyers Nave et al. (via telephone) 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Richard Holmer at 6:30 p.m. 
 
 


II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:30 p.m.) 
(None.) 
 
 


III. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:31 p.m.) 
 
A. (6:31 p.m.) Discussion/Action re Proposal to re-fund/refinance District Bonds.  


Director Holmer introduced this item.  The GM gave an overview of the item.  Board 
discussion ensued.  Comments were made by Legal Counsel David Warner.  Further 
discussion ensued.  Nicky Tallman and Rick Brandis for Brandis Tallman made a 
presentation.  Questions and discussion ensued.   


 
** At 7:57 p.m. the Board took a brief recess.  The meeting reconvened at 8 p.m. 


 
Further discussion ensued.  The Board reached consensus on the following: 
 (1) To refinance as revenue bonds, not G.O. bonds 
 (2) To hold off on hiring a financial advisor at this time 
 (3) To retain Meyers, Nave et al. as bond counsel 


 1







 2


 (4) To purchase a surety bond in lieu of using our own funds to satisfy the Reserve 
requirement 
 (5) To retain Brandis Tallman as underwriters 
 
 


ADJOURN 
The meeting adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Victoria Wikle:  ______________ _ ______  
Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  
Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  
Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  
Richard Holmer        





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:30 p.m.)

		III. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:31 p.m.)

		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 4, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION13-08, AUTHORIZING 
THE ENGAGEMENT OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE REFUNDING OF OUTSTANDING BONDS DIRECTLY PURCHASED BY 
THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Resolution 13-08 which authorizes the 
engagement of Brandis Tallman to perform underwriter services, and Meyers 
Nave to perform legal services for the refunding of United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) Bonds.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Refinancing/refunding District bonds may save District up 
to $56,000 annually.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Board of Directors has discussed refinancing the District’s USDA bonds at 
the March 7, 2013, Regular Meeting and the March 21, 2013 Special Meeting.  
At the March 21 meeting the Board reached consensus on engaging Brandis 
Tallman to provide underwriter services and Meyers Nave to provide bond and 
disclosure counsel services for the refinancing.  The proposal presented by 
Brandis Tallman meets the requirements of the refinancing and the fees 
proposed are competitive with other proposals reviewed by District staff and the 
Budget Committee.  
 
The agreement with Brandis Tallman has an estimated cost of $69,960 based on 
0.8% of par in the financing proposal presented by Brandis Tallman.  The 
agreement with Meyers Nave has a not to exceed cost of $75,000.  The costs of 
these agreements will be paid out of the refinancing proceeds.    
 
Resolution 13-08 with Exihibits A and B authorizes the General Manager to 
execute the agreements with Brandis Tallman and Meyers Nave.  







 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 13-08 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT  


AUTHORIZING THE ENGAGEMENT OF PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH THE REFUNDING OF  
OUTSTANDING BONDS DIRECTLY PURCHASED BY THE  


UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
 
 


WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) is duly 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California and is authorized 
pursuant to Articles 10 and 11 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the 
Government Code of the State of California (commencing with Section 53570) (the 
“Refunding Bond Law”) to issue refunding bonds (the “Refunding Bonds”) for the 
purpose of refunding the outstanding principal amount of two series of bonds 
directly purchased by the U.S. Economic Development Administration (the “Prior 
Bonds”) in 1992 and 2003; and 


 
WHEREAS, in order to refund the Prior Bonds and thereby realize interest 


savings, the District proposes at this time to engage professional services in 
connection with the refunding the Prior Bonds under the Refunding Bond Law; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors wishes at this time to authorize the 


engagement of such professional services; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 


Sweetwater Springs Water District as follows: 
 
Section 1.  Engagement of Professional Services.  The firm of Brandis 


Tallman LLC is hereby retained as Underwriter in connection with the issuance, sale 
and delivery of the Refunding Bonds.  The General Manager of the District is hereby 
authorized and directed on behalf of the District to execute an agreement for 
underwriting services with the Underwriter in the form on file with the Clerk of the 
Board (Exhibit A). 


 
The firm of Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson is hereby retained as Bond 


Counsel and Disclosure Counsel in connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of 
the Refunding Bonds.  The General Manager of the District is hereby authorized and 
directed on behalf of the District to execute an engagement letter with Bond 
Counsel and Disclosure Counsel in the form on file with the Clerk of the Board 
(Exhibit B). 


 
Section 2.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect from and after 


the date of approval and adoption thereof. 
 
 







RESOLUTION NO. 13-08        2 
April 4, 2013 


-2- 


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on April 4, 2013, 
by the following vote: 


 
 


Director   Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder      
Tim Lipinski       
Gaylord Schaap      
Richard Holmer      
Victoria Wikle       


 
 
  


           
      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 
 


2061350.1  
 
 
 







EXHIBIT A  
 


AGREEMENT FOR 
UNDERWRITING SERVICES 


 
SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 


 
 


This Agreement, made and entered into as of ________________, 2013, by and between the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) and Brandis Tallman LLC (“BTLLC”) is for the purpose 
of establishing BTLLC as Underwriter for the District’s proposed issuance of 2013 Refunding Revenue 
Bonds (the “Financing”). Our fee for services for this financing will not exceed 0.8 % of par.  The fee is 
contingent upon the completion of the Financing and is paid out of Financing proceeds.  There is no 
upfront fee or accruing liability to the District for the services of BTLLC.  The District reserves the right 
to terminate this Agreement or reject the proposed Financing at any time. 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
BTLLC shall perform all the duties and services specifically set forth herein and shall provide such other 
services as it deems necessary or advisable, or are reasonable and necessary to accomplish the intent 
of the District in a manner consistent with the standards and practices of underwriters prevailing at the 
time such services are rendered to the District. 
 
The District may, with the concurrence of BTLLC, expand this Scope of Services to include any 
additional services not specifically identified within the terms herein.   
 
DEBT ISSUANCE SERVICES 
 
BTLLC shall assist the District in coordinating the planning and execution of the Financing.  Insofar as 
BTLLC is providing services which are rendered only to the District, the overall coordination of the 
Financing shall be such as to minimize the costs of the transaction coincident with maximizing the 
District's financing flexibility and capital market access.  BTLLC’s proposed services may include, but 
shall not be limited to, the following: 


 
• Develop the Financing Schedule 
• Monitor the Transaction Process 
• Compilation/Drafting of Due Diligence and Disclosure Information 
• Preparation of the Rating Presentation 
• Detailed Review of Official Statement  
• Procure and Coordinate Additional Service Providers 
• Provide Financial Advice to the District Relating to Financing Documents 
• Compute Sizing and Design Structure of the Debt Issue 
• Conduct Marketing and Distribution 
• Prepare Market Commentary and Sales Comparables 
• Structure Financing Terms 
• Provide Pre-Closing and Closing Assistance 


 
Specifically, BTLLC will: 
 
 


1 
 







1. Develop the Financing Schedule. 
 
BTLLC shall take the lead role in preparing a schedule and detailed description of the interconnected 
responsibilities of each team member and update this schedule, with refinements, as necessary, as the 
work progresses. 
 
2. Monitor the Transaction Process. 
 
BTLLC shall have primary responsibility for the successful implementation of the financing strategy and 
timetable that is adopted.  BTLLC shall coordinate (and assist, where appropriate) in the preparation of 
the legal and disclosure documents and shall monitor the progress of all activities leading to the sale of 
debt.  BTLLC shall prepare the timetables and work schedules necessary to achieve this end in a 
timely, efficient and cost-effective manner and will coordinate and monitor the activities of all parties 
engaged in the Financing. 
 
3. Compilation/Drafting of Due Diligence and Disclosure Information. 
 
BTLLC will be responsible, as deemed appropriate by Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel and the 
District, to compile and draft disclosure information relating to the security of the Bonds for inclusion in 
the official statement and for discussion with investors. 
 
4. Preparation of Rating Presentation. 


 
BTLLC will be responsible for the preparation of a rating presentation to facilitate the discussion with 
rating agencies to procure a rating. 
 
5. Detailed Review of the Official Statement.  
 
Generally, Securities Exchange Commission (“SEC”), Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(“MSRB”), and the Government Finance Officers Association (“GFOA”) guidelines encourage full 
disclosure so that potential investors have sufficient data to analyze the proposed financing.  BTLLC 
shall review the official statement to insure that the District's official statement is compiled in a manner 
consistent with industry standards, typically including the following matters: 
 


* Legal authority for the Financing; 
* Security for the Financing; 
* Restrictions on additional financings; 
* Purpose and Funds for which the Financing is being issued; 
* Governmental and Financial Management System; 
* Historic and Projected Debt Service Coverage 
* Property values, concentration of ownership, percentage of development 


and land use; 
* Delinquency history; 
* Legal opinions regarding tax exemption; and 
* Such other matters as the context may require. 


 
6. Procure and Coordinate Additional Service Providers. 
 
Should the District desire, BTLLC may act as the District's representative in procuring the services of  a 
trustee, paying agent or fiscal agent, verification agent, or other professionals, as necessary.   
 


2 
 







 
 


7.  Provide Financial Advice to the District Relating to Financing Documents. 
 
BTLLC shall assist the consultants, bond counsel and/or other legal advisors in the drafting of the 
respective financing resolutions, notices and other legal documents.  In this regard, BTLLC shall 
monitor document preparation for a consistent and accurate presentation of the recommended 
business terms and financing structure, it being specifically understood however that BTLLC’s services 
shall in no manner be construed as engaging in the practice of law. 
 
8. Compute Sizing and Design Structure of Debt Issue. 
 
BTLLC shall work with the District's staff to design a financing that is consistent with the District's 
objectives and that reflects current conditions in the capital markets.  BTLLC will perform numerical 
iterations to provide examples of financing scenarios, prepare sources and uses of funds, debt service 
schedules and cash flow projections, as needed.  BTLLC will also prepare pro formas and structure 
debt consistent with existing terms and conditions that the District desires to maintain. 
 
9.  Conduct Marketing and Distribution. 
 
BTLLC shall provide regular summaries of current municipal bond market conditions, trends in the 
market and how these may favorably or unfavorably affect the District's proposed financing. 
 
As underwriter, our marketing strategy will be (A) to establish strong demand from local and in-state 
retail investors through an aggressive pre-marketing effort and a retail order period; (B) to target 
institutional buyers, in-state and nationally, that are dedicated to California municipal bonds; (C) to 
educate the largest institutions with the most buying power (national bond funds and insurance 
companies) on the quality and security of the issue; and  (D) on the sale date, to establish retail 
demand as a foundation for the financing by allocating the issue to retail orders on a priority basis,  
using the retail yield levels to obtain more aggressive orders from institutional buyers.  
 
10. Prepare Market Commentary and Sales Comparables. 
 
BTLLC will prepare market commentary, interest rate information and comparable bond sales in order 
to educate the District about the current bond market conditions and interest rates.  BTLLC will 
structure rates and terms with the sophisticated investors that are reflective of the municipal bond 
market at the time and that are acceptable to the District. 
 
11. Structure Financing Terms. 
 
Our goal is to achieve the best possible financing terms (which usually translates into the lowest cost of 
borrowing).  These terms will be weighed and considered against what the investor will accept (and at 
what price) and what works best for the District.  Financing terms can include reserve funds, serial 
versus terms bonds, final maturity, call provisions, capitalized interest and additional bonds. 
 
12.  Provide Pre-Closing and Closing Activities. 
 
BTLLC shall assist in arranging for the closing.  BTLLC shall assist bond counsel in assuming 
responsibility for such arrangements as they are required, including arranging for or monitoring the 
progress of final delivery of the securities and settlement of the costs of issuance. 
 


3 
 







4 
 


 
 


Representations. 
  
Confirming discussions with the District regarding risk, BTLLC represents the following: 
 


a. we have no conflict of interest with the District, such as a third party payment or profit-sharing 
with investors in connection with this financing; 


b. we have made every effort to have a reasonable basis for all information provided and to 
present it in a  clear, accurate and not misleading presentation; 


c. it must be noted that as a broker/dealer, our relationship with an issuer is basically an arm’s-
length commercial transaction and we may have financial and other interests that differ from the 
District. 


d. we are not acting as a municipal advisor, financial advisor or fiduciary to the District or any other 
person or entity and have not assumed any advisory or fiduciary responsibility to the District 
with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby and the discussions, undertakings and 
proceedings leading thereto.  


e. the only obligations we have to the District with respect to the transaction contemplated hereby 
expressly are set forth in this Agreement, except as otherwise provided by applicable rules and 
regulations of the SEC or the rules of the MSRB. 


f. the District has consulted its own legal, accounting, tax, financial and other advisors, as 
applicable, to the extent it has deemed appropriate in connection with the transaction. 


  
 The District and BTLLC have each caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized officers as of the date first above written. 
 
BRANDIS TALLMAN LLC   SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
_______________________   By:__________________________ 
Richard Brandis, President    Steve Mack, General Manager 
 
 
 
_______________________    
Nicole Tallman, C.E.O. 
 
 
 







 EXHIBIT B 
 575 Market Street, Suite 2600 


San Francisco, California 94105 
tel 415.421.3711 


Henry Har 
hhar@meyersnave.com 
415‐677‐3352 


fax 415.421.3767 
www.meyersnave.com 


________, 2013 
 
Steve Mack 
General Manager 
Sweetwater Springs Water District 
P.O. Box 48 
Guerneville, CA 95446 


 


 
RE: Engagement for Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel Legal Services – Refunding of 1992 


and 2003 USDA Bonds 
 
Dear Mr. Mack: 
 
Thank you for retaining Meyers, Nave, Riback, Silver & Wilson (“Meyers Nave”) to perform certain 
legal services for the Sweetwater Springs Water District (the “District”) in connection with the 
refunding of the District’s outstanding bonds directly purchased by the United States Department of 
Agriculture (“USDA”) in 1992 and 2003.  We appreciate the opportunity to serve as your lawyers 
and look forward to working with you. 
 
This letter sets forth our agreement concerning the legal services we will provide and our fee 
arrangements for those services.  Please read this entire agreement before signing and returning it to 
us.  If appropriate as a condition to signing this agreement, please also submit for consideration and 
approval.   
 
1. Scope of Engagement.  Henry Har will be the lead attorney for all legal services provided 
by our firm under this engagement, and Stephen Taber will assist him and serve as lead bond 
counsel while Henry Har will also serve as lead disclosure counsel to the District. They will be 
assisted by other attorneys and paralegals as appropriate. From time to time any of them will consult 
with you or your designees regarding specific matters within this engagement and the scope of our 
services with respect to those matters.  The principal element of our services will be bond counsel 
and disclosure counsel services relating the refunding of the USDA bonds issued in 1992 and 2003.   


 
Bond counsel services consist of the following: 


 
1. Advice and counsel with respect to the structure of the transaction. 
 
2. Preparation of resolutions and notices. 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
April 4, 2013 
Page 2 
 


3. Preparation of legal documents, including (as applicable) an indenture, lease or  
  purchase documents, a loan agreement, a resolution and other principal and  
  ancillary documents. 


 
4. Preparation and delivery of an opinion of bond counsel and supplemental bond  


  opinions. 
 
5. Coordination of the closing, including preparation of the closing transcript. 


 
Disclosure counsel services consist of the following: 


 
1. Coordinate a due diligence review of the District.  
 
2. Draft the offering document and, if applicable, undertake a continuing disclosure  


  process.  
 
3. Prepare a bond purchase agreement upon the District’s request. 
 
4. Coordinate the distribution of the preliminary and final offering documents.  
 
5. Preparation and delivery of a disclosure counsel opinion. 


 
As may be warranted, our legal services shall include general consultation, guidance and 
recommendations that may be informed by our experience and knowledge, but are intended to be 
considered together with facts and circumstances and matters of business judgment, public policy, 
risk management as well as legal issues which have not been settled or determined, or about which 
lawyers might reasonably differ.  Any reference to legal services or practices not provided by Meyers 
Nave shall not be incorporated by reference or otherwise construed to express any concurrence, 
acquiescence or other view of Meyers Nave.  We understand that our work may extend to matters 
beyond the services described above only by written confirmations executed by the District and 
Meyers Nave that such work shall be included within the scope of this agreement. 
 
2. Fees and Personnel.  As compensation for our services, Meyers Nave shall be paid legal 
fees at the hourly rates of $325 for Henry Har, $495 for Stephen Taber and $135 for paralegal 
assistance, up to a cap of $75,000 for bond counsel and disclosure counsel services.  In addition to 
hourly fees, we may incur out-of-pocket expenses related to this engagement and shall be entitled to 
reimbursement of our customary out-of-pocket expenses for duplicating, telephone and facsimile 
transmission charges, postage and express delivery charges, travel expense and preparation and 
distribution of closing transcripts to participants.  These fees and expenses for bond counsel and 
disclosure counsel services shall be payable from bond proceeds, provided that if the financing does 
not close within six (6) months of the date hereof, such fees and expenses shall be payable 
immediately. 
 
3. Billing and Payment Responsibilities.  We will send monthly statements which are due 
within 30 days of receipt; as to all other matters for which payment is not due within 30 days of 
receipt, we will send monthly statements for billable legal services and costs for which we anticipate 
payment, subject to the terms and conditions of each confirmation for its applicable matter.  If you 


A PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION   OAKLAND   LOS ANGELES   SACRAMENTO   SAN FRANCISCO   SANTA ROSA   FRESNO







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
April 4, 2013 
Page 3 
 
have any questions about our invoice, please promptly telephone or write me so that we may discuss 
these matters.  If for any reason you are dissatisfied with our legal services and promptly call the 
problem to our attention, then if we fail to resolve the problem to your satisfaction, we will adjust 
our fees to an amount you consider to be fair under the circumstances. 
 
4. Communications and Protocols.  All services to be provided under this engagement shall 
be in accordance with the following communications and protocols: 
 
 (a)  You agree to receive unencrypted email and email attachments from Meyers Nave 
pertaining to this engagement as well as other matters that may interest you. 
 
 (b)  Meyers Nave shall not express its legal opinion except in the form of a written opinion 
letter labeled as such.  Any views or conclusions expressed in the course of conversations or in any 
effort to document them should be viewed only as general guidance in a situation that may be fluid 
and could evolve unpredictably.  Such views or conclusions speak only as of their date and may be 
subject to change with or without notice to you. 
 
 (c)  Whether or not expressly labeled as such, each email communication from Meyers Nave 
shall be presumed to be a privileged and confidential attorney-client communication. 
 
 (d)  No addressee of any privileged and confidential attorney-client communication shall 
forward, copy or otherwise relay such communication to anyone or any organization without the 
prior express authorization of the or anyone designated in writing by the District.  The “reply to all” 
feature should not be used without prior consideration of this protocol. 
 
 (e)  During this engagement, the use of “we” or “us” or the equivalent in any 
communication shall be presumed to refer to the sender and each addressee rather than to Meyers 
Nave, except as expressly stated to refer to Meyers Nave. 
 
5. Termination of Services.  You may terminate our services at any time by written notice.  
After receiving such notice, we will cease providing services.  We will cooperate with you in the 
orderly transfer of all related files and records to your new counsel. 
 
We may terminate our services at any time with your consent or for good cause.  Good cause exists 
if (a) any statement is not paid within 60 days of its due date; (b) you fail to meet any other 
obligation under this agreement and continue in that failure for 15 days after we send written notice 
to you; (c) you have misrepresented or failed to disclose material facts to us, refused to cooperate 
with us, refused to follow our advice on a material matter, or otherwise made our representation 
unreasonably difficult; or (d) any other circumstance exists in which ethical rules of the legal 
profession mandate or permit termination, including situations where a conflict of interest arises.  If 
we terminate our services, you agree to execute a substitution of attorneys promptly and otherwise 
cooperate in effecting that termination. 
 
Termination of our services, whether by you or by us, will not relieve the obligation to pay for 
services rendered and costs incurred before our services formally ceased. 
 


A PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION   OAKLAND   LOS ANGELES   SACRAMENTO   SAN FRANCISCO   SANTA ROSA   FRESNO







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
April 4, 2013 
Page 4 
 
6. Insurance.  During the term of this engagement, Meyers Nave shall take out and maintain 
general liability and property damage insurance in amounts not less than $1,000,000; professional 
errors and omissions insurance in amounts not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence and $4,000,000 
aggregate, which insurance may not be canceled or reduced in required limits of liability without 
written notice to you not less than ten days prior to such event.   
 
7. No Guarantee of Outcome.  Any comments made by us about the potential outcome of 
this matter are expressions of opinion only and are not guarantees or promises about any outcome 
or results. 
 
8. Governing Law; Venue.  This agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of California without regard to principles of conflicts of laws.  Any action 
to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall be filed in the Superior Court of Alameda County, 
California, or in the Federal District Court for the Central District of California. 
 
9. Entire Agreement; Full Understanding; Modifications in Writing.  This letter contains 
our entire agreement about our representation and excludes any communication prior to the date of 
this letter.  Any modifications, confirmations or additions to this letter agreement must be made in 
writing. 
 
10. Joint Representation.  Our firm maintains relationships with certain legal specialists, 
including but not limited to Perry Israel of the Law Office of Perry Israel, Sacramento, California, 
with respect to federal income tax considerations for tax-exempt financings.  Mr. Israel’s hourly rate 
of $500 shall be paid by the District as part of our firm’s billing and is included in our total cap of 
$75,000 for this engagement. Because these individuals are deemed independent contractors under 
the applicable provisions of the tax laws and not employees of the firm, it is necessary that you 
consent to dual representation by the firm and the specialist in the event the matter which you have 
engaged us to handle requires the use of that specialist.  This arrangement in and of itself has no 
effect whatsoever on the cost of your legal services, rather it is an ethical requirement that we 
disclose this fact and that you consent.  You are consenting by signing this letter.  
 
11.   Conflicts.  Our firm represents many public agencies in California, Nevada and Arizona.  
Since 1986, we have represented over seven hundred public clients, including numerous cities, 
redevelopment agencies, special districts,  counties and other public entities, as well as financial 
institutions, bond issuers, and other borrowers and we are accepting new engagements all the time.  
It is virtually inevitable that we will work on projects from other clients having different 
governmental or political objectives, beliefs or views from those of the District. 
 
In view of the fact that the District is a California special district, this letter confirms that the 
services which we are rendering to you are limited in scope and for the benefit of the District only.  
Meyers Nave performs a variety of professional services for its clients, and it is possible that we will 
represent public agency clients which are adverse to you on other matters.  To avoid potential 
problems, you agree that you expressly waive any actual or potential conflicts that might arise from 
such representation, that you will not attempt to disqualify Meyers Nave on such matters, and that 
Meyers Nave is free to represent its clients on such matters. 
 


A PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION   OAKLAND   LOS ANGELES   SACRAMENTO   SAN FRANCISCO   SANTA ROSA   FRESNO







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
April 4, 2013 
Page 5 
 


A PROFESSIONAL LAW CORPORATION   OAKLAND   LOS ANGELES   SACRAMENTO   SAN FRANCISCO   SANTA ROSA   FRESNO


By signing this letter and returning it to us, you acknowledge that we have discussed these matters 
and you confirm that the does not object to Meyers Nave’s representation of clients on matters 
where their legal, governmental or political objectives and/or positions may be different from or 
adverse to those of the District, and that the waives any conflict of interests with respect to our 
representation of such clients with differing legal, governmental or political interests.  You further 
confirm that the District will not assert any conflict of interest concerning such representation or 
attempt to disqualify Meyers Nave from representing such clients notwithstanding such adversity.  
While you would certainly be free to terminate our relationship, you agree that Meyers Nave 
nonetheless would be free to represent such clients even on those matters which you consider 
adverse, and that you waive any conflict of interest in connection therewith.   
 
Of course, these acknowledgments do not permit Meyers Nave to represent another client in 
opposing the specific matters for which you engage Meyers Nave without your specific written 
consent.   
 
You may wish, and we encourage you, to consult legal counsel regarding the effect of this conflict 
waiver. 
 
We would request that you review this letter carefully and, if it is consistent with your understanding 
of our respective responsibilities, please so indicate by returning a signed copy of this letter to me at 
your earliest convenience.  Again, we thank you for allowing us the opportunity to serve as your 
lawyers. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
Henry Har 


Very truly yours, 
 
 
Stephen Taber 


 
 
 
These terms are accepted and agreed to as of the date of this letter. 
 
 
 
By: _______________________________ 
  Steve Mack 
         General Manager 
 
Enclosures 
c:  Conflicts Department 
     Billing Department 
 
 
2061188.1  





		Item V-A - Refinancing of District Bonds

		Meeting Date: April 4, 2013 



		Item V-A.1 - Resolution 13-08 Refinancing of District Bonds

		Item V-A.2 - Ex A Brandis Tallman Agmt

		Item V-A.3 - Ex B MeyersNaveBondEngagementLtr






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B  
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 4, 2013  
 
Subject:  DISCUSSION/ACTION RE RESOLUTION 13-09 WHICH 
APPROVES THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT WITH 
COASTLAND ENGINEERING FOR 2013 CIP  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 13-09 which approves the First 
Amendment to the contract with Coastland Engineering for design and 
construction management and inspection services for the 2013 CIP Project and  
authorize the General Manager to execute.    


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Increases not-to-exceed amount of the contract to $227,791, an 
increase of $4,754.  All of the increase should be covered by liquidated damages from 
the project contractor.       
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
In November 2011, the District awarded a contract with Coastland Engineering for 
design and construction management and inspection services for the 2013 CIP Project in 
the amount of $207,037 with an extra services allowance of $16,000.   Recently 
Coastland has informed the District that contract amount needs to be increased (see 
Exhibit A).    As discussed in Exhibit A, the contract amount needs to be increased 
because of the project progress moving slower than expected.   The cost of these extra 
services is $20,753.80 which is more than the extra services allowance, thus a contract 
amendment is needed.    
 
The contract with Piazza Construction (Piazza) provides for liquidated damages of $1000 
per day if the contractor does not complete the project within the allotted time.  We 
have met with Piazza to discuss this situation and the amount of liquidated damages 
that could be expected.  We will be requesting liquidated damages to cover the extra 
services amount billed by Coastland.     
 
Resolution 13-09 authorizes the General Manager to execute the First Amendment to 
the contract with Coastland for design and construction management and inspection 
services for the 2013 CIP Project.  The First Amendment increases the contract amount 
(originally $223,037, including a $16,000 allowance for extra services) by $4,754 to a 
new Not to Exceed Amount of 227,791.   
 







RESOLUTION 13-09 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR 


ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR FY 2013 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) 
WITH COASTLAND ENGINEERING INC. (COASTLAND) AND AUTHORIZING THE 


GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AMENDMENT  
 


 
 WHEREAS, the FY 2013 CIP consists of the following elements: 
 


• Replacement of approximately 1940 ft of main line on Starrett Hill Road in 
Monte Rio with 25 services and 3 fire hydrants.  


• Replacement of approximately 1440 ft of main line on Lovers Lane in 
Guernewood Park with 22 services and 2 fire hydrants.  


• Replacement of approximately 1,270 ft of main line on Middle Terrace in 
Monte Rio with 13 services and 1 fire hydrant, and   


• Elimination of dead end mains and creation of loops by installing 2,505  of 
new main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd between Sequoia Rd 
and Paradise Lane in Rio Nido with 31 services and 3 fire hydrants; and 


 
 WHEREAS, on November 3, 2011, the District entered into a Professional Services 
Agreement with Coastland Engineering (“Original Agreement”) to provide  engineering services 
for design and construction management and inspection for the 2013 CIP in the amount of 
$207,037 (“Base Amount”) with an extra services allowance of $16,000, for a total Not to 
Exceed Amount of $223,037; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Coastland has informed the District that because of construction delays by 
the 2013 CIP contractor, Piazza Construction, they will incur additional engineering services 
costs of $20,754; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Original Agreement needs to be increased by $4,754 over the original 
Not to Exceed Amount for these extra engineering services for a new Not to Exceed Amount of 
$227,791; and 
  


WHEREAS, Piazza Construction has exceeded the number of days allowed for 
completion of the project and is subject to liquidated damages of $1000 per day pursuant to the 
Construction Contract; and   
 


WHEREAS, the liquidated damages can be used to reimburse the District for the extra 
costs incurred as a result of Piazza Construction’s failure to timely complete the project in 
accordance with the Construction Contract; and  
 


WHEREAS, the First Amendment to the contract with Coastland Engineering for design 
and construction management and inspection services for the 2013 CIP Project provides for an 
increase in the Not to Exceed Amount of $4,754, for a total Not to Exceed Amount of $227,791 
to cover the extra costs for these services.  
 







Resolution 13-09. First Amendment to Agreement for Engineering Services with 
Coastland for 2013 CIP  
April 4, 2013          2 
 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that: 
 
1.  The First Amendment to the Agreement for Engineering Services for the 2013 CIP with 
Coastland, a copy of which is attached hereto as Attachment A, increasing the Not to Exceed 
Amount in the Original Agreement to $227,791 to cover the additional engineering services 
required to complete the 2013 CIP is hereby approved; and 
 
2.  The General Manager is authorized to execute said First Amendment on behalf of the 
District. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on April 4, 2013, by the 
following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Victoria Wikle        


 
 
 


          
      Richard Holmer  


President of the Board 
 
 
      
Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 


WITH COASTLAND ENGINEERING 
 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(“First Amendment”) is made and entered into this ___ day of ______________, by and 
between Sweetwater Springs Water District (“District”), and Coastland Civil Engineering, Inc., 
(“Consultant,”  and collectively with District, referred to as “Parties”) for the purpose of 
amending that certain Professional Services Agreement (“Original Agreement”), between the 
Parties dated November 3, 2011, for engineering services for design and construction 
management and inspection of Capital Improvement Program (CIP) construction projects for 
2013 (“2013 CIP Projects”). 
 
WHEREAS, the Original Agreement has a Not to Exceed Amount of $223,037; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to failure of the contractor to timely complete the 2013 CIP Projects, the 
District is in need of additional engineering services from Consultant; and 
 
WHEREAS, the District wishes to amend the Original Agreement to increase Consultant’s 
compensation for additional services and amend the Not to Exceed Amount; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree to amend the Original Agreement as follows: 
 
1. Section 3 of the Original Agreement, “Payment Terms and Not to Exceed Amount,” is 
hereby amended to increase the “Not to Exceed Amount” to $227,791. 
 
2. Except as otherwise modified by this First Amendment, the terms and conditions of the 
Original Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.     
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this First Amendment to be signed and 
executed to be effective as of the date first shown above. 
 
 DISTRICT      CONSULTANT 
 
 
By: ______________________________  By: _______________________________ 
 
Its: _____General Manager____________  Its: _______________________________ 
        


By: _______________________________ 
 
ATTEST:      Its: _______________________________ 
 
By: ______________________________ 
 Julie Kenny, Clerk of the Board 
 







 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
___________________________________ 
David Warner, District General Counsel 
 
 







smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text

Exhibit A



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text



smack

Typewritten Text









		Item V-B - Authorization to Increase Coastland Contract Amount for CIP 2013

		Meeting Date: April 4, 2013 



		Item V-B.1 - RES 13-09 1st Amendment to Engineering Services Agmt for CIP 2013

		Item V-B.2 - 1st Amendment to Coastland 2013 CIP Contract

		Item V-B.3 - EX A Coastland Letter










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 


 
Meeting Date: April 4, 2013 
  
SUBJECT: NOTICE OF COMPLETION FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 CIP 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 13-07 which authorizes the General 
Manager to accept the Fiscal Year (FY) 2013 Capital Improvement Project (CIP as 
substantially complete, and to sign and record a Notice of Completion upon satisfactory 
completion of punch list items. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
    
DISCUSSION: 
 
The FY 2013 CIP, which is replacement of approximately 1940 ft of main line on Starrett Hill 
Road in Monte Rio with 25 services; of approximately 1440 ft of main line on Lovers Lane in 
Guernewood Park with 22 services; of approximately 1,270 ft of main line on Middle Terrace 
in Monte Rio with 13 services; and  elimination of dead end mains and creation of loops by 
installing 2,505 lf of new main and appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd between Sequoia 
Rd and Paradise Lane in Rio Nido with 31 services is substantially complete.  The Project 
Engineers, Coastland Engineering (Coastland), have communicated that Piazza 
Construction satisfactorily completed all elements of the project. As such it is 
appropriate for the Board to approve Resolution 13-07 which authorizes the General 
Manager to accept the Project as substantially complete, and to sign and record a 
Notice of Completion.   
 
Sweetwater Springs Water District entered into a contract with Piazza Construction  
(Piazza) for construction of the FY 2013 CIP on June 15, 2012 for a contract price of 
$1,353,885.00 with a projected completion date in late October 2012.  There were 
some late delays in the project – a late start and some slowness in the early months, 
but the contractor has made a good effort to get the project completed.     At this 
time we don’t have a final accounting of the change orders, but they are not 
expected to be much and could possibly be a credit toward the contract costs.  The 
Sonoma County Community Redevelopment Agency (CRDA) and Russian River 
Redevelopment Oversight Committee (RRROC) provided funding assistance for this 
project in the amount of $974,250 which was 75% of the estimated cost for the 
project.  The actual bid was substantially higher than the engineer’s estimate so the 
grant support was approximately 62% of the total final cost which also includes total 
design and construction management and inspection services costs for the project of 
approximately $227,800.   
 
Despite the delay issues, the work done by Piazza has been good and District customers 
in the affected areas are seeing better water quality, more reliable service, better fire 
protection, more consistent water flow, and paved roads where trenching was done.  







2013 CIP Notice of Completion  2  
April 4, 2013 
 
The completed project will also reduce system water losses as these areas were 
constant sources of distribution system breaks, and the affected customers will have 
fewer service interruptions due to repair of the leaks.    The neighborhoods served by 
this project have received real, long lasting improvements.  CRDA and RRROC should be 
very satisfied with the completed result meeting the goals of redevelopment.   







 
Resolution No. 13-07 


 
A RESOLUTION OF THE SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
ACCEPT THE FISCAL YEAR 2013 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 


AND TO SIGN AND RECORD A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 


 WHEREAS, Sweetwater Springs Water District (“District”), entered into a construction 
contract with Piazza Construction (“Contractor”) on June 15, 2012 for the construction of the 
District’s Fiscal Year 2013 Capital Improvement Project (CIP) (“Project”), which is replacement 
of approximately 1940 ft of main line on Starrett Hill Road in Monte Rio with 25 services; of 
approximately 1440 ft of main line on Lovers Lane in Guernewood Park with 22 services; of 
approximately 1,270 ft of main line on Middle Terrace in Monte Rio with 13 services; and  
elimination of dead end mains and creation of loops by installing 2,505 lf of new main and 
appurtenances in Canyon Seven Rd between Sequoia Rd and Paradise Lane in Rio Nido with 
31 services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Project has been overseen by Coastland Engineering (Coastland), who 
provided engineering services for the District on this project; and 


 WHEREAS, Coastland informed the District on March 27, 2013, that the Project has 
been substantially completed; and 


 WHEREAS, Coastland has recommended that the District sign and record a Notice of 
Completion for the project.  


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 


 1. The General Manager is hereby authorized to accept the improvements 
constructed as part of the Project.  


2. The General Manager is authorized to sign and record a Notice of Completion 
upon receipt of all necessary completion documentation.   


 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER SPRINGS 
WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on April 4, 2013, by the 
following vote: 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Gaylord Schaap       
Richard Holmer       
Victoria Wikle        


 
           


      Richard Holmer 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 





		Item V-C - 2013 CIP NOC

		Item V-C.1 Res 13-07 2013 CIP Notice of Completion






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 4, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  FY 2013-2014 DRAFT BUDGET 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a report on the Draft District FY 2013-2014 
Budget, including the draft Budget Report, and provide direction to staff.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The draft FY 2013-2014 (FY14) Budget was presented at the March meeting.  At the 
meeting we discussed long-term budget issues and the line item details of the 
proposed FY14 Budget.  During the discussion several items were highlighted, among 
them was the projection of water sales revenues.  Highlights of the FY14 Budget 
include: 
 


• A 3% increase in the Water Usage, Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charges.     
 


• Water sales are projected to be flat.   
 


• This is the first year since FY08 that Redevelopment funding assistance is not 
included.   


 
• The capital projects to be constructed in FY14 include Hidden Valley Road and 


Guernewood Lane.  The FY15 capital project, Old Monte Rio Road, will be 
designed and construction contract award expected in FY 14.     


 
• The savings from the proposed USDA Bonds refinancing is not included in this 


budget.   
 


The Proposition 218 notice was mailed during the week of March 15.  As of the date 
the writing of this report (March 28), 56 protests have been received.   
 
Exhibit A is the draft FY14 Budget Report.  It includes a summary of the budget 
detail, the revenues and expense pie charts and discussion of notable budget items.    
This document plus information on the proposed 3% water rates increase will be on 
the District website.   


 
  


Table 1.  FY 2013-2014 Budget Preparation  







FY 2013-2014 DRAFT BUDGET   2 
April 4, 2013 
 


 


Review Capital Improvement Program  December 7, 2012 


Budget Committee meetings February/March 
2013 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action, 
Including Direction on Water Rates 


March 7, 2013 


Prop 218 Mailing for Water Rate Increase March 18, 2013 


Draft Budget to Board for Discussion/Action April 4, 2013 


Approve Budget 
• Prop 218 Public Hearing on Rates 


May 2, 2013 


 
 


 







 


  
 


Exhibit A 
Sweetwater Springs 


Water District 
 


Annual Operating & Capital 
Improvement Budget 


 
2013-14 Fiscal Year 


(For the period July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Richard Holmer, President 


Gaylord Schaap, Vice President 
Tim Lipinski, Financial Coordinator 


Sukey Robb-Wilder  
Victoria Wikle 


 
General Manager 


Steve Mack 
 







FY 2013-14 Budget Report  2  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 2


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2013-14 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
Table 1 is a summary of the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 (FY14) Budget which is described 
and shown in detail in the following pages.  The FY14 Budget is similar in form and 
content to prior years’ budgets.  The FY14 Budget includes the third year of 3% 
increases for the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges and a 3% increase to the Capital 
Debt Reduction Charge.     
 
T A B L E  1 .   F Y 1 4  D R A F T  B U D G E T  S U M M A R Y
O P E R A T I N G  B U D G E T   


F Y  1 1 -1 2
F I N A L  (C A S H ) *  


 F Y 1 2 - 1 3  
B U D G E T


F Y  1 2 - 1 3
P ro je c t e d  


 F Y  1 3 -1 4
B U D G E T  


D i ff e r e n c e  
F Y 1 4 - F Y 1 3  


B u d g e t s  
R E V E N U E


O P E R A T I N G  R E V E N U E
4 0 3 1  ·  W a te r  B i l l  R e v e n u e


2 3 6 , 8 8 7 2 3 0 , 0 0 0  2 3 8 ,6 0 0  2 4 5 , 8 0 0         1 5 , 8 0 0         


1 , 2 7 9 , 0 3 6 1 , 2 4 8 , 9 3 0 1 , 2 9 3 , 2 9 0      1 , 3 3 2 , 1 0 0      8 3 , 1 7 0         
0 . 7 0             5 6 0 , 8 2 3 5 4 7 , 6 2 0 6 5 5 ,4 7 0 6 7 5 , 1 0 0         1 2 7 , 4 8 0       


T o ta l  O P E R A T I N G  R E V E N U E 2 , 0 7 6 , 7 4 6 2 , 0 2 6 , 5 5 0 2 , 1 8 7 ,3 6 0 2 , 2 5 3 , 0 0 0 2 2 6 , 4 5 0       
T o ta l  N O N - O P E R A T I N G  R E V E N U E 1 2 5 , 8 8 8 1 3 3 , 0 0 0 1 1 0 ,5 0 0 9 3 , 4 0 0 (3 9 , 6 0 0 )        


T o t a l  In c o m e 2 ,2 0 2 ,6 3 4 2 ,1 5 9 , 5 5 0 2 , 2 9 7 , 8 6 0 2 ,3 4 6 ,4 0 0 1 8 6 , 8 5 0       


E X P E N S E S
O P E R A T I N G  E X P E N S E S


S A L A R Y  &  B E N E F I T S
7 9 7 , 6 1 5 8 5 2 , 6 9 6 8 0 4 ,0 0 0 7 9 4 , 5 9 0 (5 8 , 1 0 6 )        
2 7 1 , 4 7 0 2 9 5 , 4 5 2 2 9 0 ,9 6 0 3 1 6 , 4 1 5 2 0 , 9 6 3         


T o ta l  S A L A R Y  &  B E N E F IT S 1 ,0 6 9 ,0 8 5 1 ,1 4 8 , 1 4 8 1 ,0 9 4 ,9 6 0 1 ,1 1 1 , 0 0 5 (3 7 , 1 4 3 )        


T o ta l  S E R V IC E S  &  S U P P L IE S 4 6 0 ,1 9 2 4 8 5 , 9 3 0 5 2 4 ,6 7 0 5 2 0 , 9 3 0 3 5 , 0 0 0         


T o t a l  O P E R A T IN G  E X P E N S E S 1 ,5 2 9 ,2 7 7 1 ,6 3 4 , 0 7 8 1 , 6 1 9 , 6 3 0 1 ,6 3 1 ,9 3 5 ( 2 , 1 4 3 )          


O P E R A T I N G  S U R P L U S /D E F I C I T $ 6 7 3 ,3 5 7 $ 5 2 5 , 4 7 2 $ 6 7 8 , 2 3 0 $ 7 1 4 ,4 6 5 1 8 8 , 9 9 3$      


T o ta l  F I X E D  A S S E T  E X P E N D I T U R E S 5 , 8 4 1 2 0 , 0 0 0 1 9 ,5 0 0 2 2 , 0 0 0 2 , 0 0 0           


T o ta l  T R A N S F E R S  T O  O T H E R  F U N D S 5 1 6 , 9 0 0 4 9 0 , 0 0 0 6 4 8 ,6 0 0 6 7 5 , 8 0 0 1 8 5 , 8 0 0       
T o ta l  D IS A S T E R  E X P E N S E 0 0 0 0 -                   


S U R P L U S /D E F I C IT 1 5 0 , 6 1 6 1 5 , 4 7 2 1 0 ,1 3 0 1 6 , 6 6 5 1 , 1 9 3           


C A P IT A L  B U D G E T
R E V E N U E / S O U R C E S  O F  F U N D S


T o ta l A s s e s s m e n t s 7 3 0 , 1 7 6 7 7 7 , 0 0 0         7 6 6 , 1 9 2         7 7 7 , 0 0 0         
C a p i t a l  D e b t R e d u c ti o n  C h a rg e 2 3 6 , 9 0 0 2 3 0 , 0 0 0         2 3 8 , 6 0 0         2 4 5 , 8 0 0         1 5 , 8 0 0         
I n te r e s t 3 6 , 3 3 9 2 5 , 0 0 0           2 3 , 6 0 0           2 5 , 0 0 0           -                   
T o ta l C D C  G r a n ts 6 7 2 ,0 8 9 9 1 4 ,2 5 0       9 1 4 ,2 5 0       


F u n d s  f r o m  R e s e r v e s 7 4 0 , 1 6 9 3 8 0 , 0 0 0         1 , 5 2 5 , 0 0 0      
T o ta l T r a n s f e r s  f r o m  O p e r a t io n s 2 6 5 , 0 0 0 2 4 5 , 0 0 0         3 9 5 , 0 0 0         4 1 5 , 0 0 0         
T O T A L  R E V E N U E 2 , 6 8 0 , 6 7 3 2 , 1 9 1 , 2 5 0 2 , 7 1 7 ,6 4 2 2 , 9 8 7 , 8 0 0 7 9 6 , 5 5 0       


E X P E N S E S
T O T A L  D E B T  P A Y M E N T S 1 , 0 8 9 , 7 5 5 1 , 0 9 1 , 3 1 4 1 , 0 9 1 ,3 1 4 1 , 0 9 1 , 3 1 4 -                   


T o ta l C a p i t a l  E x p e n s e s 1 , 3 2 3 , 0 7 2           2 , 8 3 6 , 0 0 0      1 , 6 0 9 , 7 5 1      1 , 8 7 7 , 1 4 9      ( 9 5 8 , 8 5 1 )      
T O T A L  E X P E N S E S 2 , 4 1 2 , 8 2 7 3 , 9 2 7 , 3 1 4 2 , 7 0 1 ,0 6 5 2 , 9 6 8 , 4 6 3 ( 9 5 8 , 8 5 1 )      


S U R P L U S / D E F I C I T 2 6 7 , 8 4 6 -1 , 7 3 6 , 0 6 4 1 6 ,5 7 7 1 9 , 3 3 7 1 , 7 5 5 , 4 0 1    


F U N D  A N D  L O A N  B A L A N C E S  ( E O Y )
D IS T R IC T   R E S E R V E S  A N D  F U N D  A N D  L O A N  B A L A N C E S  
   T o t a l  D i s t r i c t  P o l ic y 1 , 0 8 5 , 0 8 1           1 , 1 3 1 , 3 4 8      1 , 1 3 1 , 3 4 8      1 , 1 3 0 , 8 1 2      ( 5 3 6 )             
T O T A L  R e s e r v e s  E O Y 4 , 7 9 1 , 3 5 0           3 , 0 1 8 , 1 4 0      4 , 0 9 2 , 3 3 5      2 , 5 6 5 , 7 2 8      ( 4 5 2 , 4 1 2 )      
   R e s e r v e s  A b o v e  ( b e l o w )  P o l ic y 3 , 7 0 6 , 2 6 9           1 , 8 8 6 , 7 9 2      2 , 9 6 0 , 9 8 7      1 , 4 3 4 , 9 1 6      ( 4 5 1 , 8 7 6 )      


T o ta l B e n e fi t s
T o t a l  S a la ry


4 0 3 1 . 1 .  · C a p i t a l  D e b t  R e d u c ti o n  
C h a r g e
4 0 3 1 . 1 .  · B a s e  R a te
4 0 3 1 . 1 .  · W a t e r  U s a g e


 


 







FY 2013-14 Budget Report  3  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 3


Summary of FY14 Revenues and Expenses.  Figures 1 and 2 respectively 
show District FY14 sources of funds and expenses.  Note that sources of funds are 
enhanced by approximately $700,000 from District Reserves for capital improvements.   
These Figures do not include sources of funds or expenses for construction of the 2015 
CIP for which the construction contract will be awarded in FY14 but the funds not 
expended until FY15 (approximately $800,000). 


Figure 1.  FY 2014 Sources of Funds
Total = $3.1 Million Revenues + $690,000 Reserves


Base Rate
35%


Water Usage 
18%


CDRC
6%


Assessments
20%


Interest
1%


Rent, Other
2%


Reserves
18%


 
Figure 2. FY 2014 Expenses


Total = $3.8 Million
(does not include FY15 CIP construction)


Capital Improvements
28%


Salary and Benefits
30%


Debt Repayment
28%


Services and Supplies
14%


 







FY 2013-14 Budget Report  4  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 
 


2013-14 Fiscal Year (FY14) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site and distributed 
through approximately 85 miles of distribution pipes and stored in 26 tanks and 
reservoirs.   This system is managed and its operation administered by the District staff 
of 10 full time employees.  The District has an aggressive capital improvement program 
aimed at maintaining and improving the capital infrastructure to deliver high quality 
water, reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and 
fireflow.  The annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these 
tasks. 
 
The FY14 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
third year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and a 3% 
increase to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   Most of the revenues for the FY14 Budget come from water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 1).  In 2011 District staff did a 
comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that with small annual increases in rates, the 
District can develop sustainable funding for needed capital projects to maintain District 
facilities once the current catch up capital improvement program is completed.  The 
financial analysis showed that annual 3% increases will build into $500,000 available 
annually for capital projects.   This is the third year of proposed annual 3% rate 
increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement program.   
 
The District had planned for a steeper increase to the Capital Debt Reduction Charge to 
enable it to cover all District debt payments within 3 years.  However, the District 
decided to treat the Capital Debt Reduction Charge in the same manner as the Base 
Rate Charge (both are fixed rates based on meter size or number of housing units) and 
increase it in the same manner.   More information on the District’s water rates and a 
water rate calculator can be found on the District’s website at 
www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
FY 2014 CIP and FY 2015 CIP (Table 2):  The FY14 Capital Budget includes the 2014 
Capital Improvement Program (CIP), which is replacement of 3,900 lineal feet (lf) of 
existing main and appurtenances on Hidden Valley Rd, with 67 services, 2 fire hydrants; 
and 1,800 lf of existing main and appurtenances on Guernewood Lane, and 
abandonment of 200 lf of redundant 4–inch main along Hwy 116, with 20 services, 2 fire 
hydrants.     
 
The FY14 Budget also includes the obligation for funding construction of the FY 2015 
CIP, which is replacement of 5,800 ft of existing main and appurtenances commencing 


 4 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2013-14 Budget Report  5  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


at the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding westerly to the Highway 116 intersection, 
estimated to have a total cost of approximately $936,000.  This expense is included in 
the FY14 Budget because the construction contract would be obligated in May or June 
of the fiscal year.  However, most of the expense will occur in FY15.   
 
Because of the end of Redevelopment the annual CIP has been scaled back based on 
program review during this past year.  The District intends to continue to improve the 
District’s infrastructure, but the end of Redevelopment and lack of alternative grant 
funding means we have to do it more slowly.     
 
District Reserve Policy:   A formal District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future, and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
• Budget Reserve – a reserve based on 10% of the Operating Budget expenses 


for emergencies, such as a natural disaster. 
• Economic Reserve – 15% of the Operating Budget expenses for economic 


downturn or other economic crisis. 
• Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 


District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 
• Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 


issues with the capital program. 
 


The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds, listed in the budget, minus 
$200,000 cash balance for operating purposes, at the end of the year.  The difference 
between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy Reserves is Reserves Above 
District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number positive.  The amount above the 
District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for future capital projects.  The 
Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where we are in funding an 
ongoing capital program.  The Draft FY14 Budget projects that the District will have 
approximately $1.4 million in Reserves Above District Policy at the end of FY14, 
including the obligation for the FY15 CIP.  This means cash on hand in the Reserves 
Above District Policy will approximately $2.2 Million at the end of FY14.   


 
Other Financial Assumptions/Highlights of the FY14 Budget include: 
 


• Water Sales will be flat in FY14 – our assumption is that a 3% rate increase will 
result in a 3% revenue increase in water sales.  


• The presentation of Water Sales Revenue splits out Base Rate Charge 
Revenues and Water Usage Charge Revenues.  This enables better tracking of 
the fixed revenues from the bimonthly water bills from the variable revenues 
based on water usage.   


• Salaries are increased to match the approved Memorandum of Understanding 
and contracts for nonrepresented employees but also include the savings of the 
General Manager moving to partial retirement.  


• The transfer to CIRF is budgeted at $390,000 in FY14. 
• Approximately $14,000 is included in the Budget to cover the District’s unfunded 


liability for retired employee health care.   
 


 5 







FY 2013-14 Budget Report  6  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 
Line Item Highlights of the FY14 Budget: 
 
The FY14 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases in the 
Base Rate and Water Usage Charges based on flat water sales.  Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge (CDRC) revenue also includes a 3% increase.  Operating interest is 
continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower interest on deposited 
funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Salaries have decreased approximately $58,000 to reflect the partial 
service retirement of the General Manager.   Benefits are budgeted to increase 
approximately $20,000 because of an anticipated increase in the cost of health benefits.  
Salaries and Benefits are a major District expense – approximately 70% of the FY14 
Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $35,000 higher than the FY13 
approved budget.  There are small increases in several line items to reflect higher costs.   
Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services and has 
been increased to reflect the projected costs in FY13 which will likely be similar for 
FY14.   Governmental Fees have been increased to reflect higher fees being charged 
by all levels of government.  Professional Services has increased to reflect staff’s 
estimate of realistic legal expenses.  Electric is a big expense item and is expected to 
have a small increase in FY14 ($900).    
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures has been reduced but the District will likely carry over the 
expense for the purchase of a replacement chlorination system for the Monte Rio 
Treatment Plant. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $677,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 
(CIRF), Building Fund, In-House Construction Fund, and CDRC revenue.   
 
The FY14 Capital Budget major expenses are the FY 2014 CIP (estimated cost 
$900,000) and FY 2015 CIP (estimated cost $900,000), described above and in 
Table 2. 
 
Capital Interest revenue is estimated conservatively to reflect expected continuing low 
interest rates this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.1 million and 28% of total 
District annual expenses.  District Capital Debt includes: 
 


• General Obligation (GO) Bonds – $12 million in bonds that were approved to 
purchase the District and make needed capital improvements.  Paid off in 2032.  


 6 







FY 2013-14 Budget Report  7  
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


 7 


Annual payment - $684,000.  The District is investigating the possibility of 
refinancing these bonds with an estimated annual savings of approximately 
$55,000.  If possible this would not be completed prior to approval of the FY14 
Budget and is not included in the Budget.   


• State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-6 for needed improvements.  Paid off in 2021-2.  Annual payment - 
$170,168.50. 


• Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012.   


 
The Private Placement Loan of $3 million acquired in September 2008 has been 
completely expended funding District capital projects (CIP IV-A and CIP IV-B).   
 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY14, District Policy Reserves are at $1,130,812 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the year are $1,434,916.   This includes the obligation for the 
FY 2015 CIP, so actual cash on hand reserves at the end of FY14 will be approximately 
$2.2 million.   
 
 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2013-2014 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2014    


  
Hidden Valley Rd (GV) – Replace 3,900 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances on Hidden Valley Rd, 67 services. $656,000


  


Guernewood Lane (GV) - – Replace 1,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances and abandon 200 lf of redundant 4 – inch main along Hwy 
116, 20 services. $318,000


 2014 Total $974,000 
  


2015  


 


Old Monte Rio Road (GV) – Replace 5,800 lf of existing main and 
appurtenances commencing at the Handy Andy Booster and proceeding 
westerly. $936,000


 2015 Total $936,000


 2014-2015 Totals $1,910,000
 





		Item V-D - FY 2013-2014 Draft Budget

		Meeting Date: April 4, 2013 



		Item V-D.1 - FY14 Draft Budget Report

		Board of Directors

		Tim Lipinski, Financial Coordinator

		General Manager



		Steve Mack

		Sweetwater Springs Water District










SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: April 4, 2013  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Laboratory Testing: Water quality tests confirm that all SSWD water meets 
all known State and Federal water quality standards.   


 
2. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in February were 13,884 units 


(31.9 AF, Monte Rio cycle) and production was 54.0 AF.  Compared to one 
year ago, sales and production this February were higher (28.9 AF and 48.3 
AF, respectively).  The annual average difference between sales and 
production was similar to the prior month, 26.2%.  Figure 1 shows the 12 
month moving averages since September 2006, data are available back to 
May 2001.       


 
3. Leaks:  In February we had 8 total leaks and spent 31 man-hours on them.   


Those are fewer leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and 
similar to February one year ago (10 leaks, 36 man-hours).  Figure 2 is 
continued showing service and main leaks separately with a total breaks line 
as well.            


 
4. Guerneville Rainfall: March continued the dry 2013.  This year will beat 


2009 for total rainfall but the amount received in 2013 is lagging even that 
very dry year.  March has done better than February and January, but is still 
below average.               


 
5. 2014 CIP:   The 2014 CIP is well into design.  We had a design meeting with 


Coastland Engineering on March 27.  One major issue is getting wording right 
on HDPE experience so we get more competent bidders.          


 
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:   One toilet rebate was approved in 


March.  The Direct Install Program numbers are the same as last month: the 
most current accounting is 17 customers have had 27 direct install toilet 
installations completed, 13 customers with 17 toilets have been approved for 
installation and 21 customers with 37 toilets are on a wait list.                     


 







General Manager’s Report  2 of 4 
April 4, 2013 


7. In-House Construction Projects:  There were six in-house projects 
reported for March.  Staff installed 2” main (poly) and replaced 2 services on 
Foothill Road in Monte Rio (60 hours); potholed 2 tees for investigation 
related to Guernewood Lane capital project (28 hours); replaced the service 
line, stop and meter stop on Brookside Lane in Guerneville (19 hours); had 
two construction upgrades on Monte Vista Terrace and Center Way (7 hours 
total), and capped of 6” AC that was used for old well site (24 hours)  


 
8. Highland Treatment Plant Cell Tower Lease: There wasn’t much new 


news on this item, so it isn’t on the Administrative agenda for discussion – 
AT&T legal staff is still reviewing the lease agreement and AT&T staff are 
submitting the application for the County permit this week.        


 
9.  Gantt Chart:   April in the Gantt Chart shows only CIP design happening but 


it’s still a budget month too.         
 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2006 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-06 Mar-07 Sep-07 Mar-08 Sep-08 Mar-09 Sep-09 Mar-10 Sep-10 Mar-11 Sep-11 Mar-12 Sep-12


Sa
le


s 
an


d 
Pr


od
uc


tio
n 


(A
F)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
iff


er
en


ce
 (%


)


Sales
Production
%Difference


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 







General Manager’s Report  3 of 4 
April 4, 2013 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline Breaks 
Moving Annual Average Since September 2006


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
06


Jan-
07


May-
07


Sep-
07


Jan-
08


May-
08


Sep-
08


Jan-
09


May-
09


Sep-
09


Jan-
10


May-
10


Sep-
10


Jan-
11


May-
11


Sep-
11


Jan-
12


May-
12


Sep-
12


Jan-
13


B
re


ak
s


Main Breaks


Service Breaks


Total Leaks







General Manager’s Report  4 of 4 
April 4, 2013 
http://www.wrh.noaa.gov/mtr/cpm_lhm.php


Santa Rosa
���� Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug


���� 0.46 1.76 1.15 2.01 2.04 2.65 0.23 1.43 0 0 0
���� 1 2.47 17.65 5.36 3.63 9.97 5.05 0.49 0.02 0.02 0
���� 0.57 3.66 5.46 0.57 7.1 0.31 2.58 0.36 0 0.17 0
���� 3.26 0.81 5.06 11.21 3.09 0.32 0.3 0.03 0 0 0
���� 0.78 2.57 2.52 0.63


���� ��� 0.78 2.57 2.52 0.63 5.84 4.74 1.69 0.88 0.19 0.06 0.1
1971-2000
������� 1.81 4.27 4.49 6.13 5.84 4.74 1.69 0.88 0.19 0.06 0.1


�����������
1971-2000 4.03 9.35 9.89 10.51 9.31 6.77 3.36 0.38 0.13 0.26 0.2


223% 219% 220% 171% 159% 143% 199% 43% 68% 433% 200%
�������
Cazadero
1939-1971 4.04 12.37 12.9 16.36 15.04 9.7 4.59 2.02 0.68 0.33 0.5
������� 223% 290% 287% 267% 258% 205% 272% 230% 358% 550% 527%


Cumulative totals
Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug


1977 0.46 2.22 3.37 5.38 7.42 10.07 10.3 11.73 11.73 11.73 11.73
���� 1 3.47 21.12 26.48 30.11 40.08 45.13 45.62 45.64 45.66 45.66
2007 0.57 4.23 9.69 10.26 17.36 17.67 20.25 20.61 20.61 20.78 20.78
���� 3.26 4.07 9.13 20.34 23.43 23.75 24.05 24.08 24.08 24.08 24.08
���� 0.78 3.35 5.87 6.5


���� ��� 0.78 3.35 5.87 6.5 12.34 17.08 18.77 19.65 19.84 19.9 20.0
1971-2000
������� 1.81 6.08 10.57 16.7 22.54 27.28 28.97 29.85 30.04 30.1 30.2


�����������
1971-2000 4.03 13.38 23.27 33.78 43.09 49.86 53.22 53.6 53.73 53.99 54.2


Guerneville Cumulative
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2002


3.3 October 2.1 0.05 0.1 4.37 2.79 0.55 3.17 1.5 3.29 11.68 3.22 2.93 4.03 2.
2.18 November 14.97 4.47 6.21 2.62 5.71 5.92 1 4.57 1.66 3.58 4.02 13.23 9.35 17.07
5.4 December 18.84 25.99 21.08 14.48 27.48 9.56 9.41 4.04 4.84 15.24 0.3 14.54 9.89 35.9


18.55 January 6.78 9.15 7.63 6.32 10.78 0.09 17.28 0.86 15.94 1.85 11.05 1.61 10.51 42.69
February 2.46 3.52 15.5 5.53 7.22 8.38 6.62 9.62 8.78 6.29 1.97 0.71 9.31 45.15
March 4.52 2.7 7.63 14.35 0.44 0.31 3.95 6.23 15.96 11.59 2.47 6.77 45.15
April 0.53 7.99 1.72 2.66 9.28 0.25 0.2 0.75 7.53 0.84 2.51 3.36 45.68
May 0.77 1.57 0 7.12 0.3 0.43 0 4.12 1.97 5.22 0.28 0.38 46.45
June 0 0 0 0.91 0 0 0 0 0 0.95 0.08 0.13 46.45
July 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.26 46.45
August 0 0 0 0.03 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0.22 46.45
September 0.1 0 0.18 0.25 0 0 0.05 0.03 0.28 0.02 0 0.87 46.55


29.43 46.55 57.26 55.12 51.92 77.91 25.62 38.04 29.44 50.52 61.63 35.02 35.49 55.08
PD coop


1.42 1.66 Average Median
5.09 4.84 October 1.83 1.80 4.03 24.86


17.23 15.94 November 5.68 5.14 9.35 -4.58
0.02 December 16.36 16.66 9.89 61.91


23.76 22.44 January 7.36 7.21 10.51 25.61 8.8
February 7.36 6.92 9.31 0.75 -41.72
March 4.84 3.95 6.77


PD is starting April 2.92 1.24 3.36
2011 at .28 May 1.79 0.60 0.38


June 0.11 0.00 0.13
14.15 July 0.00 0.00 0.26
13.87 August 0.00 0.00 0.22


2.19 September 0.08 0.04 0.87
0.77 31.27 48.34 43.55 55.08


 
 
 
 


 







Dec-11 Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 FY 14+
Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2012-13 Budget Preparation


•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


2013-14 Budget Preparation
•        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
•        Staff Budget Preparation Begins


•        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
•        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
•        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
•        Update/Review District CIP


•        2013 CIP Design


•        2013 CIP Award of Contract


•        2013 CIP Construction Starts


•        2014 CIP Design


•        2014 CIP Award of Contract


•        2014 CIP Construction Starts


2010 Urban Water Management Plan Dec-15


Water Rights SCWA Protest


Building Lease
•        Lease Ends July-16


Policies and Procedures
•        Other Policy
•        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Goals and 
Objectives


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: April 4, 2013 



